
MINUTES 
Initial Meeting 

Governor McDonnell’s Task Force for Local Government Mandate Review 
1:00 p.m., November 7, 2011 
The Virginia Housing Center 

Henrico Rooms 2 & 3 
4224 Cox Road 

Glen Allen, Virginia 
 

Members Present          Members Absent 
 
The Honorable Pat Dyer 
The Honorable Pat Herrity 
The Honorable Shaun Kenney 
Kimball Payne 
The Honorable Joan E. Wodiska 
 
Government Reform Commission 
 Liaisons to the Task Force Present 
 
The Honorable Alicia Hughes 
The Honorable Suzy Kelly 

Staff Present 
 

          Susan Williams, Local Government Policy Manager 
          Barbara Johnson, Administrative Assistant 
          Ed Lanza, Senior Public Finance Analyst 
          Zack Robbins, Senior Policy Analyst 
 

I. Call to Order 

Mr. Kenney called the meeting to order at 1:09 p.m. on November 7, 2011, as temporary chair, for the 
purpose of electing the Task Force’s Chair. 

II. Election of Chair and Vice‐Chair 

Mr. Payne nominated Mr. Herrity as Chair, which was seconded by Ms. Wodiska , and the Task Force 
unanimously elected Mr. Herrity as Chair. [Mr. Herrity assumed the role as Chair at this point in the 
meeting.] 

 Mr. Kenney nominated Ms. Wodiska as Vice‐Chair, which was seconded by Mr. Dyer, and the Task Force 
unanimously elected Ms. Wodiska as Vice‐Chair.   

III. Approval of Draft Agenda 

Mr. Herrity called for a motion to approve the draft agenda.  Such motion was made by Mr. Kenney and 
seconded by Mr. Dyer, and unanimously approved. 



Minutes 
Governor’s Task Force for Local Government Mandate Review 
November 7, 2011 
Page 2 
 
 

 
 

IV. Staff Presentation 

Ms. Williams gave a presentation, which is attached to these minutes, on the duties of the Commission 
on Local Government relating to mandates:  assisting this task force; fiscal impact analysis; mandates 
cataloging; and mandates assessment.  Ms. Williams also discussed the statute governing the temporary 
suspension of mandates by the Governor; described previous major studies relating to mandates; and 
set forth several “decision points” regarding the task force’s review process. 

Mr. Payne asked if any mandates have ever been repealed.  Ms. Williams responded that, to her 
knowledge, only one mandate has been repealed as a result of the mandates assessment process. 

V. Remarks from the Virginia Association of Counties (VACo) 
 

Mr. Ted McCormack, Director of Government Affairs for VACo, presented VACo’s concerns regarding 
mandates.  He stated that mandates can be appropriate; however, VACo is concerned with underfunded 
provisions of mandates that require localities to comply regardless of state aid.  He said that the 2011 
General Assembly repealed five mandates; however, only one was unfunded, and the others had a 
minimal effect.  He emphasized that elimination of mandates that are conditions of state aid or 
regulations of optional activities will not result in substantial fiscal savings and that most of the difficult 
mandates to comply with are those that are not funded or are underfunded.  Finally, Mr. McCormack 
pointed out that mandates originating from the Appropriations Act are not subject to the 
Commonwealth’s policies and processes that have been set forth for identifying and analyzing 
mandates. 

 
VI. Remarks from the Virginia Municipal League (VML) 

 
Mr. Neal Menkes, Director of Fiscal Policy for VML, presented concerns with state government using 
mandates to shift costs to localities, which pressures localities to raise taxes and can potentially harm 
economic development efforts.  He suggested changes to the Line of Duty Act and Comprehensive 
Services Act, delaying implementation of the academic and career plan requirements, a moratorium on 
education mandates that are beyond federal requirements, and he asked for analysis as to whether the 
state should determine Medicaid and social services eligibility.  He then offered several suggestions for 
overall reform of how the state handles and funds mandates.  He then summarized by stating that not 
every policy issue requires a state solution, and he recommended that mandates not be used to cut 
costs at the state level, that mandates should not hamper innovation and efficiency, and that mandates 
should be reviewed for cost and benefit with attention to the burden placed on the localities. 

 
VII. Public Comment 

Mr. Herrity stated that only two speakers had signed up to address the Task Force, and he called for any 
additional persons who desired to speak to sign‐up.  No one came forward.  



Minutes 
Governor’s Task Force for Local Government Mandate Review 
November 7, 2011 
Page 3 
 
 

 
 

Dr. Thomas W. D. Smith, Legislative Liaison for the Virginia Association of School Superintendents came 
forward and reflected general agreement with the prior speakers.  He also stated concerns about the 
uniform applicability of mandates among large and small school divisions and that the implementation 
of mandates has taken away from educational resources.  In particular, he stated that many school 
administrative support positions have been eliminated, causing teachers to be responsible for many 
mandated reporting requirements. 

Patty Rosner, a resident of Goochland County, came forward and asked that the Task Force consider 
measures to delay the mandated implementation of Urban Development Areas. 

No additional persons signed up to address the task force. 

VIII. Scheduling of Future Meetings 

Mr. Herrity asked for comments from each of the members before discussing future meetings. 

Mr. Dyer stated that he believes the Task Force should prepare a preliminary report before the 
upcoming General Assembly Session, and he expressed the importance of supporting data and public 
input. 

Mr. Kenney agreed with Mr. Dyer’s remarks and specifically cited the addition of online SOL testing as a 
burdensome expense.  He also stated that the relationship between the state and its localities was 
“broken” and that overall state‐local responsibilities should be studied.  He suggested going after “low‐
hanging fruit” in the short term. 

Mr. Payne expressed concerns about the state shifting funding responsibilities to localities and stated 
that the Task Force should seek the reversal of this trend as a long term goal.  Further, if the Task Force 
seeks to address budgetary issues in the short term, he said efforts should be made to restore state 
funding of the Line of Duty Act benefits and teacher retirement healthcare benefits, as well as the 
elimination of the general $60 million aid reduction to localities.  He suggested, in the short term, 
concentrating on 6 to 12 mandates that clearly do not make sense, specifically mentioning the mandate 
requiring that schools send home to parents documents providing the school division’s budget 
information.   

Ms. Wodiska expressed concerns about reducing education standards back to the federal requirements, 
and the availability of sufficient fiscal impact information to the legislature.  She also spoke to the need 
to eliminate red tape. 

Mr. Herrity expressed general agreement with the prior comments, and added that the Governor had 
made it clear that, in the short term, proposals requiring additional state funding was off the table.  Mr. 
Herrity stated that the short term goal should be the development of an omnibus mandate relief bill and 
specifically mentioned the requirement for on‐line SOL testing as one mandate of concern.  He added 



Minutes 
Governor’s Task Force for Local Government Mandate Review 
November 7, 2011 
Page 4 
 
 

 
 

that a long term goal of the Task Force should be to address how state‐mandated/locally delivered 
services are funded. 

Ms. Wodiska said the Virginia School Board Association will be surveying school officials for fiscal 
information and code references for burdensome mandates.  She then expressed concerns about the 
mandate assessment process, the need to estimate the true cost of a mandate, and suggested looking at 
measures used in other states to reduce mandates, and the consideration of a moratorium on 
implementing any new mandates.   

In response to a question from Mr. Herrity, Ms. Carrie Cantrell, Deputy Secretary for Commerce and 
Trade, said that any requests for legislation for 2012 would need to be submitted by the beginning of 
December.  Ms. Cantrell stated that the Task Force should also consider Executive Orders and regulatory 
changes. 

Mr. Kenney recommended establishment of three subcommittees: one for the identification of 
mandates to be eliminated through an omnibus bill, and requested staff research the potential 
elimination of the two mandates that had been previously discussed, as well as changes to the 
assessment process, a second for studying education issues, and a third to make recommendations for a 
moratorium on mandates. 

Ms. Williams then explained that Executive Order 58 (2007) requires mandates to be implemented for 
two years prior to assessment so that the effect of the mandate can be studied once it has taken effect.  
She further explained that this provision was recommended by a task force convened in 2006 and 
comprised of local government officials and state agency representatives because they felt a mandate 
should be in effect for at least that period of time before adequate data is available to assess it. 

Ms. Kelly suggested the previously submitted comments be studied by the omnibus bill committee. 

Mr. Herrity stated five tasks for moving forward: (1) establishment of an education subcommittee, 
which will study the materials from the survey mentioned by Ms. Wodiska, (2) direct staff to draft 
legislation establishing a moratorium on future mandates, including the Appropriations Act, (3) direct 
staff to drat amendments to Executive Order 58 (2007), (4) develop ideas for an omnibus bill, and (5) 
make recommendations regarding the Line of Duty Act, and other similar mandates regarding funding, 
or providing administrative relief.  

There was discussion regarding seeking elimination of a specific percentage of mandates, and whether 
to reduce such by percentage of cost or percentage of catalog entries.  It was acknowledged that there 
is no central source for cost data; therefore, catalog entries would be the metric used.  Ms. Hughes 
suggested elimination of 10‐15 percent of the mandates should be a goal. 

Mr. Kenney made a motion to direct staff to draft a mandate moratorium bill and amendments to the 
Executive Order, which was seconded by Mr. Payne.  The motion was unanimously approved. 



Minutes 
Governor’s Task Force for Local Government Mandate Review 
November 7, 2011 
Page 5 
 
 

 
 

Mr. Herrity then established the various subcommittees, and assigned members: 

Education:  Ms. Wodiska (chair), and Mr. Kenney.   

Moratorium (on Mandates): Mr. Dyer (chair), Mr. Kenney, and Ms. Kelly. 

Suggestions for Potential 2012 Mandate Elimination Legislation: Mr. Payne (chair), Mr. 

Herrity, and Ms. Hughes 

Mr. Herrity stated that he would help draft a reminder email to localities for them to submit their lists of 
mandates to be eliminated – including the relevant code section or catalog number – by November 16, 
2011. 

Next, the task force discussed potential dates for the next meeting.  Ms. Hughes suggested Saturday, 
November 19th.  Ms. Williams stated staff support would be a problem, and Ms. Cantrell stated that 
state buildings are closed, and that the Governor’s Office prefers weekday meetings for the benefit of 
the public and staff attendance.  By consensus, the Task Force determined that the next meeting would 
be held at 10:00 a.m. on Saturday, November 19th in Fluvanna County.  Mr. Kenney stated that he 
would provide directions to the location, which is to be determined. 

Ms. Williams asked subcommittee chairs to provide her with meeting dates and locations so that she 
can post notice of subcommittee meetings on the Commonwealth Calendar at least three days in 
advance, as required by FOIA. 

Mr. Herrity then stated that he would email other members with potential future meeting dates. 

Mr. Herrity then clarified the tasks for each of the committees.  The moratorium committee is to review 
draft amendments to the executive order relative to the assessment procedure (regarding the 
requirement that mandates must be in effect two years prior to assessment and the limitation on 
assessment to no more than once every four years), and to propose legislation to provide a moratorium 
on new mandates, to include the budget bill. 

Mr. McCormack further emphasized that the reason why E.O. 58 requires mandates be in effect for two 
years prior to assessment is so the actual cost of the mandate can be determined.  Mr. Payne stated that 
currently local governments are requested to provide fiscal impact data prior to the passage of 
mandates, which is often ignored.  Mr. McCormack then stated that it must be recognized that many of 
the bills that are referred for fiscal impact study are not actually mandates, and that many mandates are 
not ever referred for such review.   

Regarding the potential legislation subcommittee, Mr. Herrity explained it will be tasked with repealing 
non‐fiscal mandates, and also reversing cost‐shifts to localities, such as the Line of Duty Act. 



Minutes 
Governor’s Task Force for Local Government Mandate Review 
November 7, 2011 
Page 6 
 
 

 
 

Mr. Payne asked how an omnibus bill would be handled through the General Assembly committees.  Ms. 
Cantrell stated that several separate bills would be required for each subject area. 

Ms. Williams reiterated that localities need to refer to specific code sections or mandate catalog 
numbers when submitting their requests for mandates to be repealed. 

Ms. Wodiska stated concerns for gathering sufficient input for educational issues, and the need for 
multiple advisory committees for the education subcommittee.   

IX. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:57 p.m. 

 


